BOARD MEETING

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
February 20, 2025

=

» )

.
8’3
Y.

R

Story Quilts - A Celebration Valentine’s Yarn Monsters

AARP Tax Help Pasos Verdes

Jefferson County

\; PUBLIC LIBRARY

\



APPROVAL OF AGENDA



BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees

ITEM# / ACTION Thursday, February 20, 2025 - 5:30 pm - HYBRID MEETING
e ONLINE MEETING VIA ZOOM
e IN-PERSON MEETING AT LAKEWOOD LIBRARY MEETING ROOM
1. Call to order & attendance (4.5.8)
A. Verbal roll call — Each Trustee announces their presence by stating their name.
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Agenda Approve Agenda
Action Chair: Call for motion and second

4. Public Comment

Public Comment

The Board values public participation. Those who would like to address the
Library Board can do so virtually, in-person, or online. The opportunity to address
the Library Board does not include a question-and-answer session or response.
Additionally, the Library Board does not respond to anonymous questions or
comments. Comments will be acknowledged in the minutes of the meeting.

If you choose to make a Public Comment virtually or in-person during a Board
meeting, your name will be called in the order it was received, first for virtual
guests then for in-person guests.

To address the Library Board of Trustees during Public Comment:

1.  In-person: Must sign in on the form provided at the door.

2. Virtually during the public comment portion of the meeting: Send a chat
message to the meeting host with name and the comment topic

3. Online public comment form: The online form is available at 5:30 pm the
Thursday prior to the scheduled Library Board meeting and closes at 1:00 pm
the day prior to the scheduled Library Board meeting.

4.  People who dial in will not be able to provide public comment during the
meeting.

5. Those who failed to sign up or submit the online form, or arrived late, may,
at the discretion of the Chair, be allowed to address the Library Board.

6.  The Chair has authority to maintain the decorum of the meeting. Conduct or
comments that are disruptive to the meeting or its participants are
prohibited.

For more information on public comment policy please refer to Board Governance

Policy 4.3.7: Board Governance Policy Manual (jeffcolibrary.org)

5.CONSENT
AGENDA
Action

Approval of Consent Agenda
Chair: Call for motion and second

A. Approve Minutes of January 9, 2025 Study Session
B. Approve Minutes of January 16, 2025 Board Meeting

6. Foundation

Foundation Update



https://jeffcolibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/46/2024/03/March_2024_Board_Governance_Policy_Manual-1.pdf

BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees

7.Operational Updates
Action as Needed

Executive Director

A. Executive Director Report

B. Capital Building Projects Update
C. Joan Atwater Naming Agreement

Chair: Call for motion and second
D. 2024 Year End Fundraising Report and 2025 Plan
Guest: Bridget Beatty Consulting, LLC

Strategy & Operations
A. 2024 End of Year Report

Libraries & Inclusion
A. Conifer Library Design Update
Guests: Eppstein Uhen Architects, Inc

Strategy & Operations

A. Notice to Proceed Request for Conifer Library Tenant Improvements
Chair: Call for motion and second

B. Contingency request Budget Transfer

Chair: Call for motion and second

C. LED Lighting Contract

Chair: Call for motion and second

Finance and Budget

A. Financial Report (January 2025)

B. Carryforward Request for Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Amendment
Chair: Call for motion and second

Technology & Digital Innovation
A. Xcite Standley Lake Library Audiovisuals Contract
Chair: Call for motion and second

8.Action as Needed

Items Removed From Consent Agenda (4.3.4): The Board may address and/or vote
on any items that were removed from the Consent Agenda

9. Emerging Issues

Action as Needed
10. Ends Ends: No items.
Action as Needed
11. Board Governance | Board Governance:
Action as Needed | A. Nominating Committee report to the Board: Proposed Slate of Officers

B. Bylaws Committee status update

C. Library Board of Trustees Review Policy Governance Monitoring Reports 2.0 to
2.4. Adoption will be on the consent agenda for the March 20, 2025 Board meeting
unless otherwise instructed by the Board

D. Board adopts Governing Policies




BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees

o 4.10 Collection Development

Chair: Call for motion and second

o 4.10.1 Reconsideration of Library Resources
Chair: Call for motion and second

12. Suggest Agenda
Items
Action as Needed

BOARD SCHEDULE — NEXT MEETINGS -

Location of meetings of the Library Board of Trustees are being determined in

cooperation with guidelines from Jefferson County. Information on meeting

location will be posted at least one week prior to the scheduled meeting date.

2025 Board Meeting Schedule

e March 13, 2025 -Study Session Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location:
Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e March 20, 2025 — Board Meeting — 5:30 pm Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-
Person Location: Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e April 10, 2025 -Study Session Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location:
Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e April 17, 2025 — Board Meeting — 5:30 pm Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-
Person Location: Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e May 8, 2025 -Study Session Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location:
Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e May 15, 2025 — Board Meeting — 5:30 pm Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person
Location: Lakewood Library Meeting Room

13. Discussion

Board Questions or Comments Related to Items on the Meeting Agenda

14. Discussion

Evaluate Board Meeting (4.1.9)

15. Information

Announcements/General Information Sharing
e Report of the Chair — Correspondence, Other
e Other Announcements

16. EXECUTIVE
SESSION WITH
ADJOURNMENT OF
REGULAR MEETING

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Call for Motion and Second to adjourn the regular meeting of the Library Board of
Trustees and reconvene in executive session AND adjourn the regular Board
meeting at the conclusion of the Executive Session.

(1) Collective Bargaining. Statutory citation authorizing an executive session for

this topic is:

¢ Pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(e)(I) for discussion of strategy and instructions to

negotiators.

(2) Urban Renewal Authority. Guest: Kurt Behn, County Attorney’s Office

Statutory citation authorizing an executive session for this topic is:

* Pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(e)(I) for discussion of strategy and instructions to

negotiators.

e Pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(b) Conferences with an attorney for the local public
body for the purposes of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions.




CONSENT AGENDA



ADMINISTRATION
10200 W. 20th Ave.

303.235.5275 \gf PUBLIC LIBRARY

Lakewood, CO 80215 Jefferson County

v/

jeffcolibrary.org

TO: Library Board of Trustees
FROM: Kim Johnson, Chair and Donna Walker, Executive Director
DATE: February 20, 2025

RE: Consent Agenda for the February 20, 2025 Board Meeting

A. Approve Minutes of January 9, 2025 Study Session
B. Approve Minutes of January 16, 2025 Board Meeting



Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees
Study Session
January 9, 2025- 5:30pm
Hybrid Meeting held online via ZOOM
and in-person in the Lakewood Library meeting room.

TOPICS:
Board Governance - Strategy
e Board Reviews Global Ends Statements 1.0-1.4
e Strategic Planning Framework & Process

e 2025 Annual Plan: Strategic Priorities, Initiatives, Programs & Projects

e 2026+ Strategic Planning

Board Governance

e Board Reviews Draft Sunshine Resolution LB-01-16-25

Contracts & Agreements

e Baker & Taylor Boundless Contract Renewal

e Midwest Tape Hoopla Amendment to Extend and Renew Contract

e 2025 Operating Agreement for Digital Literacy Training Partner Site, Jefferson
County Public School

Call to Order
Kim Johnson, Chair, called the Study Session to order at 5:30 p.m.

Other Trustees present: Emelda Walker (Vice-Chair), Jill Fellman, Stanley Harsha
(Secretary), and Renny Fagan.

Trustees not present: Pam Anderson, Charles Jones
Guests present: Greg Bellomo, GPS, Inc.

Staff present: Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Director of Public
Services; Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction; Bernadette Berger,
Director of Technology and Innovation; Matt Griffin, Director of Business Strategy and
Finance; Lisa Smith, Director of People and Culture; Elise Penington, Director of
Communications & Engagement (Virtual), Amy Bentz, Assistant Director of Library
Design Projects and Planning; Jessica Paulsen, Assistant Director of Public Services for

Customer Experience; Kelci Rude, Administrative Coordinator Supervisor; Katie

Page 1 of 15



O’Loughlin, Administrative Coordinator Supervisor; and Ryan Turch, Technology and

Innovation Operations Supervisor.

Executive Director Announcement:

The Executive Director informed the Board that our Location & Extent (L&E) was
approved last night. There are/were some additional requirements, but they are not
related to L&E. The Board Chair signed the closing document for 11100 Bradford Rd,
for our new South County Library, this morning.

Board Governance - Strategy

The Executive Director advised the Board that the next three topics are part of the
method the Board uses to engage in JCPL'’s strategic planning process. The Board will
review the ends statements, strategic planning framework and process, the 2025 annual
plan and provide input. Once the Library hears inputs from the Board, any adjustments
to the plan will be made and next week the Board will be asked if the Library can move

forward with the annual plan.

Board Reviews Global Ends Statements 1.0-1.4
The Global Ends Statements were developed with extensive Board, staff and public

input. The Library recommends maintaining the ends statements for this year as the
final year of the 2020-2025 plan.

The Board did not recommend any changes to the Ends. The Chair advised the Board
that they would be asked for a consensus on these at the next meeting.

Strategic Planning Framework & Process

Matt Griffin, Director of Business Strategy and Finance addressed the Board and
provided information on the Library’s strategic planning framework and process. The
Board was informed that the Executive Director will ask for consensus on the plan at
the 1/16/2025 regular Board meeting. The Board has an opportunity to ask questions
tonight on programs/projects/deliverables.

Page 2 of 15



2020 - 2025 Strategic Plan

ENDS STATEMENTS
« Equity of Access
+ Maximize Value
« Create Place

« Provide Leading-
Edge Services

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
- Create Libraries for the Future
+ Reach More People
- Focus on Building Literacies
+Bethe Third Place - Grow Sustainably

INITIATIVES
« Service Point Development & Expansion
+ Excellence in Customer Service
+ Lifelong Learning & Literacy
+ Building Inclusive Community
+ Embracing Innovation & Change
+ Continuous Process Improvement

This is in place through end of 2025. Our initiatives are at the bottom of the pyramid; in
the project management world we refer to those as portfolios. By organizing under
these portfolios, we ensure every effort is tied to a specific initiative and therefore the
Mission, Vision, Values.

2025 Annual Plan: Strategic Priorities, Initiatives, Programs & Projects
Heading into 2025, the Library believes that the five strategic priorities set in the 2020-2025
Strategic Plan continue to hold true.

These priorities are to:

CREATE LIBRARIES FOR THE FUTURE
Jefferson County Public Library will create libraries for the future throughout the county via
expansion, redesign and construction.

REACH MORE PEOPLE
Jefferson County Public Library will reach more people through strategic partnerships, alternative
services, customer experience, inclusion efforts, and community engagement and outreach.

FOCUS ON BUILDING LITERACIES

Jefferson County Public Library will focus on building literacies through patron-interest-focused
materials selection, creative technologies, digital literacy services, school and workforce
readiness, adulting programs, small business support and financial literacy initiatives.

Page 3 of 15



BE THE THIRD PLACE

Jefferson County Public Library will facilitate civil civic conversation, develop collaborative
community discovery spaces, and serve as the place to be for out-of-school time and not-to-miss
events.

GROW SUSTAINABLY

Jefferson County Public Library will manage financial resources to meet our planned capital and
service build-out within our current mill levy rate of 4.5 and account for a variety of economic
conditions.

Similarly, library leadership reviewed and validated our strategic initiatives, high-level actions that
set the direction for JCPL’s strategic projects, and further the strategic priorities to reach the ends
statements.

These initiatives are:

JCPL has more convenient and accessible service points throughout our
community. Service points are designed to meet the social, technological,
economic and sustainability challenges and opportunities of the future.

Service Point Development &
Expansion

JCPL demonstrates a deep understanding of individual, community, and

Excellence in Customer Service L ) R
organizational needs in the way we serve each other and our residents.

Literacy programs and services address specific learning and literacy
Lifelong Learning & Literacy development needs. Opportunities for all ages, backgrounds, and abilities are
met with effective and inclusive technologies and approaches.

Equitable and inclusive practices are embedded in policy, decision-making and

Building Inclusive C i
liding Inclusive Community partnership development.

Modernization of JCPL is achieved through proactive pursuit of positive change

Embracing Innovation & Change . X
by exploring new technologies, structures, approaches, and systems.

Continuous Process Systems are improved in order to maximize organizational effectiveness,
Improvement advance services, and increase efficiency.

Building on the project management framework introduced last year, we continue to use the
program-based structure that organizes related projects into cohesive programs. These
programs align with broader portfolios named after our key initiatives, directly connecting each
project to its strategic impact.

This approach remains integral to how we manage and prioritize efforts across JCPL, keeping a
clear focus on the initiatives outlined in our 2020-2025 Strategic Plan.

Page 4 of 15



Outlined below are the projects that form the 2025 JCPL Annual Plan, along with their
anticipated deliverables for the year.

Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion
Program: New Construction

Project: South County Library

Deliverables:

Finalize Program of Service

Complete Design Development phase
Develop recommendations for interim uses
Investigate partnership opportunities
Initiate naming opportunities solicitation

Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion
Program: New Construction

Project: South County Express Library
Deliverables:

Finalize site location
Define services
Complete design
Initiate construction

Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion
Program: New Construction
Project: Northwest Jeffco Library

Deliverables:
e Finalize Program of Service
e Complete Design Development phase
o Investigate partnership opportunities
¢ |Initiate grant & naming opportunities solicitation

In response to questions, the Board was informed that:

e The difference between the Northwest and South County fundraising goals are
related to our fundraising consultant’s analysis of where we have funding
opportunities. They are recommending focusing on Northwest. The challenges
for South County funding are related to both timeline and opportunity.

e The Library will provide a copy of the PowerPoint shown in the meeting to the
Board.

Page 5 of 15



Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion
Program: Building Redesign

Project: Arvada Library

Deliverables:

Finalize Design Development

Complete construction drawings with guaranteed maximum price (GMP)
Implement alternative service options

Begin construction

Initiate naming opportunities solicitation

In response to questions, the Board was informed that:

Each capital project has a communication plan that is part of the larger project
plan. Those are not called out here.

The Board receives updates on the communication and community outreach
through the Executive Director reports that are provided as part of the Board
packets.

The Executive Director will consider how we can inform the Board about our
public communications around projects and progress.

Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion
Program: Tenant Finish

Project: Conifer Library

Deliverables:

Finalize construction documents with guaranteed maximum price (GMP)
Conclude intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with Conifer High School
Open new Conifer Library

In response to questions, the Board was advised that:

Naming opportunities solicitation was not included here as so much of that work
is current work that is ongoing.

There are three naming agreements that we are asking for approval on at the
1/16/2025 meeting.

The Executive Director confirmed that Naming Opportunities Solicitation can be
added back as a deliverable.

Portfolio: Excellence in Customer Service
Program: A Radically Welcoming User Experience
Deliverables:

Develop standardized new patron onboarding process

Page 6 of 15



¢ Implement new patron onboarding plan
¢ |dentify tools for personalized patron experience
¢ Implement tools for personalized patron experience

In response to questions, the Board was informed that:

e Trustees will see progress on the Radically Welcoming User Experience program
over the course of the year.

Portfolio: Lifelong Learning & Literacy
Program: Creative Technologies
Project: Creative Tech Mobile
Deliverables:

e Finalize mobile lab design
e Create mobile STEM curriculum
¢ Investigate partnership opportunities

Portfolio: Building Inclusive Community

Program: Create a Radically Welcoming JCPL - Staff
Project: All Staff Compensation Strategy
Deliverables:

o Complete compensation analysis
e Integrate findings into Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA)
¢ Integrate findings into 2026 budget

In response to questions, the Board was informed that:

e One of the things we do is to look at the objectives of the initiatives. Building
Inclusive Community is around inclusive practices in decision making and
policy. We would probably ask to leave these projects where they are instead of
shifting them to another portfolio.

e The Compensation Analysis consists of benchmarking against nationwide
markets and against specific library positions. We have a third-party company
doing this work. We are now in the final piece of this where the company will
look at their analysis and at County’s analysis and see where there are gaps.
Then, we will analyze where we are and how we can adjust. It will then go to the
union, which also propels what happens with non-union employees.

e The compensation analysis also included other governments and Denver Metro
Libraries for comparison.

Portfolio: Building Inclusive Community
Program: Digital Accessibility

Page 7 of 15



Deliverables:

e Create JCPL-specific digital accessibility guidelines
o Meet 2025 digital accessibility requirements across platforms

Portfolio: Embracing Innovation & Change
Program: Artificial Intelligence (Al) Strategy
Project: Al Strategy Development
Deliverables:

e Finalize Al Strategy
e Initiate strategy implementation

Bernadette Berger addressed the Board. In response to questions, the Board was
advised that:

e We have completed strategy development sessions over the last year. We are
working with an outside consultant to guide us along this journey. We want to
move with County because we operate with them, and we want to go along with
them. It is evolving rapidly. We’ll understand more of the work under this as we
build out our strategy.

e We anticipate there will be several aspects to this work that will focus on both
staff and patrons.

Portfolio: Embracing Innovation & Change
Program: Fundraising Development
Deliverables:

o Complete 2024-2025 Fundraising Plan
o Develop a 3-5 year fundraising plan
e Create a fundraising plan for 2026

Portfolio: Continuous Process Improvement
Program: Collective Bargaining

Project: Collective Bargaining Agreement
Deliverables:

Integrate economic impacts into 2026 budget
Finalize CBA

Obtain BOT approval of CBA

Obtain BCC approval of CBA

Portfolio: Continuous Process Improvement
Program: JCPL Long Term Plan

Page 8 of 15



Project: 2026+ Strategic Plan
Deliverables:

Refined Mission, Vision, and Broad Goals framework
Finalize 2026+ strategic plan

In response to questions, the Board was informed that:

We are not yet sure what month we will complete the 2026+ strategic planning. We
will make progress on it over the next few months. It is an iterative process. We
will be in a good spot by the time we bring the budget to the Board to review, in
about the first half of the year.

Trustees will see when we are making progress towards a deliverable in the
Executive Director report.

Projects and programs may seem to be an appropriate fit under several
portfolios. Our process is to identify a single best match portfolio for where these
should live.

It is a project management best principle to only list programs/projects once,
rather than having them under several portfolios.

If there’s something that Trustees want to come to an agenda, they should work
with the Chair. The Chair confirmed that Trustees are welcome to provide
suggestions or requests for agenda items.

The Chair confirmed that the goal for Trustees is to provide recommendations
for what they’ll see in the budget. Not getting into Operations, but saying ‘This is
where we hope Operations go”

The Chair confirmed that the Executive Director will look for a consensus next
week. If you have questions over the week, please share those with the Chair so
the Executive Director and her team can come with answers and information
next week

2026+ Strategic Planning:

Matt Griffin addressed the Board and introduced the 2026+ Strategic Planning topic.

JCPL is going to begin the process of 2026 and beyond strategic planning. We use plus
because we don’t know the duration of this next plan. Greg Bellomo from GPS is with us
tonight. He is guiding us through this session and the whole process. Trustee role is to

review Mission, Vision, Values and End Statements (broad goals). The internal team will
review, and revise based on your input tonight and bring something fresh to the next
session.

Greg Bellomo explained that GPS’s role is facilitative; it is not to advise. He will be

Page 9 of 15



leading the Trustees through an exercise tonight, and Trustees will engage progressively,
beginning with broadest goals today.

In general, strategic planning is a four-step process: Organize- inform strategy- find out
what people have to tell you- disciplined process of creating that into a framework. We're
just on the cusp there of informing and moving into a synthesized framework.

Four Step Process

Aug - Sept 2024 Oct - Nov 2024 Dec 2024 — Mar 2025 Apr - Dec 2025

Mobilize Support &
Establish Project
Management

¥ Plan
v Clear expectations

¥ Schedule

Inform the Strategy

v Engage
v Listen

¥ Summarize

Synthesize the
Strategic Framework

- Vlcreation
- Consensus

- High-level roadmap

Development
Implementation Plans
and Governance

- Expandreach
+ Build momentum

- Sharpen implementation

plans
v Begin communication - Testing & refinement
- Establish roll-out

approach

- Refine details

B = ‘@:“"é" 3
Input Data:

Input Data

70 Spanish Speaking & 33 Paper Submittals

12 32

Internal Leadership
Interview Stakeholder Interviews

8391
Respondents

570k
Jeffco Population

65 8 391

CMT & Supervisor Team
Members Completed Surveys

Page 10 of 15



GPS interviewed Directors Team (12), 32 community partners, 65 members of the
Supervisory team (CMT), 8391 respondents who completed the survey (10 min survey).
1.5% of Jeffco population- mostly English speaking and they were taken online. 70 in
Spanish. This is not representative of Spanish population, but bilingual speakers may
take a survey in English. GPS does plan to come back around and look for confirmation
on those inputs with staff and community.

Survey insights:

S Insight
Facilities and JCPL staff and
Pkl Sommenity¥ision e

- Physical materials - High demand for - Modernized spaces, - Libraries seen as hubs - Staff praised for

remain highly valued expanded adult and more locations, and for learning, dedication and
(34% of survey older adults extended hours connection, and safety expertise
respondents) programming (e.g., needed during crises
tech training, career
= Digital resource workshops) « Off-site services (e.g., = Adapting to changing
usability and express libraries, holds demographics and
awareness need - Libraries viewed as lockers) appreciated climates is key for
improvement hubs for connection for accessibility success

and tailored learning
opportunities

@ i -
I

o Programs: whenever someone wants to go somewhere new, they think of the
library as pathfinders for them. No shortage of ideas around different learning
opportunities.

o Facilities & Construction: validates builds and refreshes. Many respondents said
they want more hours and/or something closer to them. The express location,
lockers, offsite services and spaces are well appreciated. The Library is on the right
track with those

o Community Vision: We had 10-yr vision questions- both open and closed
questions, 54% said they envision the library as a place for lifelong learning.

o English speaking respondents said the most valuable thing they wanted more of
was physical materials. Spanish speakers said copying/computers/internet — this
does require continued dialogue.

o The survey also had an open-ended question on what could be changed. 10% of all
responses were positives — perfect/don’t change a thing/like things the way they

Page 11 of 15



are

In response to questions the Board was informed that:

Staff responses were limited to leadership; this did not go out to all staff.
Leadership staff responses did not show wide discrepancies from the public
survey responses, but staff have a different focus than patrons.

Some survey respondents (fewer than 90) were non patrons. The quality of the
information wasn’t that helpful to get at a broader question of why those folks
aren’t coming to a library or using the library.

JCPL completes an annual trends exercise to help us answer the question of “What
else is out there? What are you seeing that’s next?”

We complete this exercise with leadership staff and then with the Board. The focus
is on general culture and looks at many fields, not just libraries.

Approximately 60% of respondents answered the open-ended question on the
survey about what they wanted to see changed at the library. 9-10% of those
answers said the library was perfect as is. The other respondents indicated they
wanted more hours, libraries closer to them, etc.

The demographic questions on the survey were location, age, and library user
type.

There were some divergences across age groups. Older more frequent library users
like physical materials and spaces and spoke about a need for easier digital access.
Younger users wanted hang-out spaces- 14 mentions of coffee shops. Desire for
technology was flatter across age groups. JCPL’s data team did build a utility
which will allow library leaders to really pinpoint data to get at those differences.
Ex: What did older infrequent users say about this thing vs older frequent users?

Exercise Instructions:

During this exercise we will look at our current Mission and Vision, and we'll use a
couple of questions to refine feedback.

Page 12 of 15



Thought Starter Questions

Does our current mission still capture the core purpose of our organization?
Mission What aspects of our mission feel most aligned with the community's needs as reflected in the survey?
Is there anything in the mission that feels outdated or missing?

Does our vision reflect the organization’s long-term aspirations, considering the feedback we've received?
Vision Are there emerging opportunities or challenges that our vision should address?
What would success look like in the next 5-10 years, and does our vision align with that?

Which of our broad goals seem most aligned with the community input?
Broad Goals Are there goals that need to be adjusted or refined to reflect evolving priorities and community feedback?
What areas should we prioritize in our strategic planning to have the greatest impact?

@ e ~GPo— 8
h‘x

Current Mission, Vision, Broad Goals

Mission Vision Broad Goals

Jefferson County Public
Library helps to build an
educated and vibrant
community by providing
equal access to
information and
opportunities.

Jefferson County Public
Library will be the
essential destination
where all generations
connect, discover, and
create.

Equity of Access
Maximize Value
Create Place

Provide Leading-Edge
Services

o,
D - P
© ficione —GPS—

v

Trustees provided the below feedback:

Mission:

e Some trustees felt the Mission was good as is.

Page 13 of 15



One trustee noted that the aspect that feels most aligned to community needs is
helps to build... equal access.

One trustee noted that equitable seems more accurate than equal- same concept
but a nuance.

One trustee questioned if we need to add partnerships, related to this idea of more
partnerships in the survey.

One trustee recommended updating this language to “providing information,
experiences, and opportunities” .

Chair noted that there are things people are saying that are missing from mission-
would want to ask if they are missing, or if they are captured in Vision and Goals.
They should have different longevities.

One trustee stated that they were looking to see the impact- What in here is the
impact the library has on a struggling patron for economic/social? What is the
practical impact on taxpayers- how much investment and return are we seeing-
and do people of all strata see that?

Vision:

One trustee noted that they feel we are missing ‘learn’ - all generations learn
connect create.

One trustee noted that the word ‘generations” does not speak to them. This
language feels possibly outdated, and doesn’t show inclusivity of infant to adults.
One trustee noted that the vision needs to look ahead strategically.

One trustee noted that the vision statement for an organization can also answer the
question of “so what?” or “to what end?’. The vision statement explains the point of
the work, and recommended looking at Habitat for Humanity’s statement as an
example.

Broad Goals:

One trustee noted that equity of access and providing leading edge services stood
out and felt like they will continue to remain relevant.

The Chair noted that what didn’t come through from the survey respondents is
maximizing value. They think that it still needs to be a goal even though it didn’t
come through in survey. From a Board perspective, that is their job.

One Trustee wanted to look at the language in providing leading edge services-
breaking that into concept of radically welcoming and everywhere-ness of service.
The Chair noted that Create Place always stands out to them. We continue to need
opportunities to discuss and be with other people. They know that the Library
creates place in many ways, but they feel that we need to lean into that

Fellow trustees affirmed that the Library’s role as a civic forum is very important.

Page 14 of 15



We are seeing increased polarization and divisions, and we are situated as a place
to bring people together in a non-judgmental way. You know that the person
sitting near you may think differently than you, and that is ok. They want JCPL to
encourage that and let people seek understanding with one another.

Board Governance

e Board Reviews Draft Sunshine Resolution LB-01-16-25
The Board did not have any questions regarding the proposed Sunshine Resolution.
The Chair advised the Board that this item will go on the consent agenda for next

week’s meeting.

Contracts & Agreements

e Baker & Taylor Boundless Contract Renewal

e Midwest Tape Hoopla Amendment to Extend and Renew Contract

e 2025 Operating Agreement for Digital Literacy Training Partner Site, Jefferson
County Public School

The Board did not have any questions regarding the three contract renewals. The Chair
advised the Board that these items will go on the consent agenda for next week’s
meeting.

ADJOURNMENT The Study Session was adjourned at 7:13 p.m.

Page 15 of 15



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
January 16, 2025

CALL TO ORDER - REGULAR MEETING

The regular meeting of the Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees was held
online via ZOOM and in-person in the Lakewood Library meeting room on January 16,
2025. Library Board of Trustees Chair, Kim Johnson, called the meeting to order at 5:30
p.m.

Other Trustees present: Emelda (Bing) Walker (Vice-Chair), Stanley Harsha (Secretary), Jill
Fellman, Pam Anderson, Renny Fagan, and Charles Jones.

Staff present: Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Library Planning & Policy
Senior Advisor; Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects;
Bernadette Berger, Chief Technology & Digital Innovation Officer; Matt Griffin, Chief
Strategy & Operating Officer; Lisa Smith, Chief People & Culture Officer; Amy Bentz,
Assistant Director of Library Design Projects and Planning; Padma Polepeddi, Assistant
Director of Public Services for Community Outreach; Jessica Paulsen, Assistant Director
of Public Services for Customer Experience; Katie O’Loughlin, Administrative
Coordinator Supervisor; Ryan Turch, Technology and Innovation Operations Supervisor

There were additional Library staff members attending the meeting.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
MOTION: Stanley Harsha moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the
agenda as presented. Seconded by Jill Fellman the motion passed by unanimous
vote of all Trustees present.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Board values public participation. Those who would like to address the Library Board
can do so virtually, in-person, or online. The opportunity to address the Library Board
does not include a question and answer session or response. Additionally, the Library
Board does not respond to anonymous questions or comments. Comments will be
acknowledged in the minutes of the meeting.

10f9



Christine Catramados, Kerry Auld, Lainie Miller, and Jill Hinn addressed the Board and provided
public comment regarding including the JCPL values in the next strategic plan, including a
commitment to staff in the next strategic plan, daily work that pages complete, Executive Team pay
and reorganization, 2024 and 2025 job posting pay rates, staffing levels at locations, staffing level
evaluations, and staffing levels related to 2026+ strategic plan.

The Chair advised the Board that no online public comments were received.

The Chair closed the public comment portion of the meeting at 5:43 pm.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
The Chair asked the Trustees if any of the items should be removed from the consent
agenda. There were no requests for items to be removed.

Items on the Consent Agenda

Approve December 12, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes

Adopt the Sunshine Resolution LB-01-16-25-01

Approve Baker & Taylor Boundless Contract Renewal

Approve Midwest Tape Hoopla Amendment to Extend and Renew Contract

mON W

Approve 2025 Operating Agreement for Digital Literacy Training Partner Site, Jefferson County
Public School

MOTION: Jill Fellman moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the items
on the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Bing Walker the motion passed
by unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

FOUNDATION UPDATE

Jo Schantz, Foundation Executive Director, provided an update on the activities of the
Foundation. The Whales Tale 2 bookstore is moving to 363 S Teller in Belmar. There have
been four areas claimed for the Conifer Naming rights. Library Giving Day is April 1 this
year. The Friends annual meeting is April 11. Warren Tech is partnering with the
Foundation to develop an inventory system that will facilitate seeing inventory across both
stores. The Spring 2025 Whale Sale is May 29-June 1 at fairgrounds, and the Foundation is
looking for volunteers.

There were no questions, Trustee Fellman stated she was pleased to see the Foundation
working with Warren Tech. Trustee Fellman also shared that the Friends Annual event
provides a great opportunity to listen to local authors.

20f9



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
A. Executive Director Report
The Executive Director advised the Board that the County is activating its extreme weather
response for overnight sheltering. The library works in concert with the County. We are
information brokers in this process; we help connect patrons with the resources that can help
in their situation. We do provide a limited number of small secondary items such as mittens
or bus passes if someone is in dire need.

There were no questions or comments about the Executive Director’s report.
B. Capital Projects Updates

South County Library: The South County Advisory Council met in early January. They toured
the Bradford building and had a celebration of their work. Fourteen of the sixteen members
want to continue to meet and provide support on the project. During that meeting they also
provided feedback on Express services. Rene Yaws, our South County manager, is creating
community engagement activities with our vendor, and we also have our community open
house dates scheduled for February 22 and March 1. The Board is welcome to attend those, and
we will also be working on a photo opportunity for the Board at the new building.

The Chair welcomed staff and attendees to join the Board in a toast celebrating the 9 years of
work on the South County Library. The Chair expressed thanks to the Board, Library staff, and
citizens for getting us to this point.

Conifer: We did get the El Pomar grant, we received $25,000 for Conifer. That is a contribution
towards Capital. Contributions with naming are very important for this grant. We have our
design pricing underway, and we will bring that to the Board when it’s ready.

Northwest: The design team will begin their work tomorrow; we have completed our program
of service. This is new work for us as it is a ground up build.

Arvada: We are making good progress with our search and plans for an alternative service
location during the redesign construction. Julianne Rist and Donna Walker will be meeting with
the city planner around a potential easement, and we will see if it can help expand space at that
location.

C. Laura L. Coffey Naming Agreement
The Executive Director shared that the donor was a previous story time attendee when their children
were young, and they are a longtime supporter of the library. This donation is $5,000 for the Children’s

Area.

MOTION: Pam Anderson moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the Donation and
Name Recognition Agreement between Laura L. Coffey, the Jefferson County Library Foundation,
Inc., and the Jefferson County Public Library. Seconded by Jill Fellman the motion passed by
unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

30f9



D. Judith & Mark Cook Naming Agreement
The Executive Director shared that the donors are new Conifer area residents who want to support
the library in their new community. The Executive Director confirmed that we are not sure how they
found out about the naming opportunity. This donation is $10,000 for the Community Room.

MOTION: Stanley Harsha moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the Donation and
Name Recognition Agreement between Judith & Mark Cook, the Jefferson County Library
Foundation, Inc., and the Jefferson County Public Library. Seconded by Pam Anderson the motion
passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

E. Conifer Area Council Naming Agreement
The Executive Director shared that the Conifer Area Council had been advocating for a different type
of Conifer Library for some time, and they have been great partners to the Library in this process.
This donation is $5,000 for a Study Room.

MOTION: Jill Fellman moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the Donation and Name
Recognition Agreement between the Conifer Area Council, the Jefferson County Library
Foundation, Inc., and the Jefferson County Public Library. Seconded by Pam Anderson the motion
passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

OPERATIONAL UPDATES
Business Strategy & Finance

Finance and Budget — Monthly Financials

A. Financial Report (November & December)

Matt Griffin, Chief Strategy & Operating Officer, addressed the Board and provided
information on the November 2024 and December 2024 monthly financials. He noted that
the December Table 1 shows the YTD end of December, but it doesn’t mean things have
stopped moving. We will continue to see adjustments in both directions over the next few
months across line items. The total revenue exceeded budget by 4.4 million. This was
primarily driven by property tax. We would not describe that as an overcollection, our
forecast happens early. The investment income also exceeded estimates, and those will

also be adjusted here. We monitor these into next year and we will keep an eye on
material changes. In December Table 2, our total operating expenses ended under by 3.1
million. This was primarily driven by the Library books and materials line item. We were
1.4 million under in that. Our Northwest opening day collection was budgeted for 1.26
million, and that was not spent due to project timelines. This will be moved and budgeted
in the appropriate year. The total salaries and benefits ended 2% below forecast. Final
Table shows our Grants/funds/donation and this shows $140,000 under budget. We will
collect that in the next few months and accrue it to 2024. We will see changes over the next
several months, there are no concerns from us about these items.

4 0f9



In response to a question, the Board was informed that the variance in expenditures in
Table 1 is the result of the intricacies of having a single year budget tied in with a multi-
year project. There was no true underspend, it is budgeted for in case it is needed and then
we carry over the unspent dollars into the year when we believe we will need those funds.

In response to a question, the Board was informed that Erate will be reflected later based
on when we receive it. It will be accrued to 2024.

In response to a question, the Board was informed that the electric vehicle charging
stations do carry an expense for patrons, depending on how long someone uses them for.
Our charging policy is posted on our website. Patrons get a certain amount of free
charging and then there is an expense associated with continued charging. The Library has
the ability to adjust the fee policy.

B. 2025 Annual Plan: Strategic Priorities, Initiatives, Programs & Projects
Global Ends 1.0-1.4
The Chair noted that she had not received any questions or comments from the Board on

the Global Ends. The Chair asked for consensus from the Board in support of the current
Global Ends Statements. The Board indicated consensus.

2025 Annual Strategic Plan
Matt Griffin, Chief Strategy & Operating Officer, addressed the Board and provided
information on revisions from the previous week.

e There was a change within the creation of a South County program. This was based
on the scope for South County and Express Library South. There were no changes to
the deliverables, just how they are grouped together and managed together.

e The second change based on feedback was the addition of the deliverable for
finalizing grant and naming solicitation for Conifer

e The third change was the Express Library South name change

The Chair informed the Board that they were being asked for consensus on the 2025 annual
strategic plan reflecting these changes.

The Executive Director reminded the Board that this is the organization’s performance plan
for the year. The consensus is the thumbs up from the Board so that she can implement this
plan. It does not mean that this cannot change- the Board can ask for more or we can bring
something else forward, but this sets us on a path.

The Board indicated consensus.
Public Services

Pine Library Resolution
Jessica Paulsen, Assistant Director of Public Services for Customer Experience, introduced the topic.

50f9



The relationship with Pine goes back to the late 1970s. We help with their Wi-Fi and internet costs, as
well as providing materials and an annual gift. Our Mountain Libraries manager regularly goes to
their board meetings and attends events. This is a great way to support a community on the edge of
the county. The $2,000 2025 annual gift covers insurance costs for the year.

The Chair informed the Board that she had asked the Executive Director to research using a resolution
for this instead of the previous procedure where the Board saw an annual request to approve the
monetary donation. This felt like a better way of managing this since the Board already approves the
budget, and the budget includes this. The Chair asked the Board for questions.

In response to questions the Board was advised that the Pine Library is a volunteer organization in the
community, and not a JCPL location. It is a 501c3 organization. We do not have any other information
on other types of support they may receive.

MOTION: Pam Anderson moved that the Library Board of Trustees adopt the Pine Library
Resolution LB-01-16-25-02 as presented. Seconded by Bing Walker the motion passed by
unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

The Chair informed the Board that the resolution stands until it doesn’t, but the donation
amount will be reviewed annually as part of the budget process.

Facilities & Construction Projects

Bradford Road Improvement Agreement

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction, addressed the Board. The Location & Extent
(L&E) is completed. The next step is to enter into an improvement agreement, which would ensure that
the library will contribute to traffic mitigation prior to permitting. We do have a not to exceed cost, but
we are still working on the agreement. Attorneys are drafting and revising the improvement agreement,
and we are asking the Board to approve this agreement.

The Chair addressed the Board and confirmed that there is no draft agreement to review at this time. The
Board is being asked to approve the agreement contingent upon the financial cap and attorney review
and approval. The Board does not have to act tonight, but it will help with the process if the Board is
willing to give that conditional approval to the Executive Director.

In response to questions, the Board was advised that the Library and County are in conversation around
the need for another traffic study and mitigation. We did have a traffic study as part of L&E, and they
had a few requirements which we verbally agreed to. Now we are looking at what the traffic studies say
and what level of mitigation is required. Our legal counsel feels this is low risk. The cost may be lower
than the not to exceed amount.

MOTION: Pam Anderson moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the Executive
Director to sign the Bradford Road Improvement Agreement with Jefferson County, provided
that the Library obligation in the agreement does not exceed $120,000, and pending final review

60f9



and approval by signatory parties and legal counsel. Seconded by Jill Fellman the motion
passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA
No items were removed from the consent agenda.

EMERGING ISSUES
No issues.

ENDS
There were no items.

BOARD GOVERNANCE
Bylaws Committee Appointments
The Chair announced the appointments of Renny Fagan and Bing Walker to serve on the

committee to review the By-Laws.

Nominating Committee Appointments
The Chair announced the appointments of Pam Anderson and Jill Fellman to serve on the

committee to nominate Board officers.

The nominations will be brought to the Board in February and the election will be held in
March. New officers will take seats in April. The Board is electing all positions this year. The
Chair serves a two-year term and the Vice Chair and Secretary each serve a one-year term.

Foundation Board Trustee Representative Appointment
The Chair announced the appointment of Renny Fagan to serve as the Trustee
representative on the Foundation Board.

The Chair thanked Trustee Fellman for her work in this role.

The Chair noted that the 2025 Governance Process Calendar was adopted last month.

BOARD SCHEDULE - NEXT MEETINGS
2025 Board Meeting Schedule

e February 13, 2025 -Study Session Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location: Lakewood
Library Meeting Room

e February 20, 2025 — Board Meeting — 5:30 pm Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location:
Lakewood Library Meeting Room

e March 13, 2025 -Study Session Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location: Lakewood Library
Meeting Room

70f9



e March 20, 2025 — Board Meeting — 5:30 pm Hybrid: Virtual via ZOOM. In-Person Location:
Lakewood Library Meeting Room

ANNOUNCEMENTS/GENERAL INFORMATION SHARING
There were no announcements.

No questions or comments or evaluations.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

At 6:31 pm, the Chair called for a motion to adjourn the regular meeting, reconvene in
Executive Session regarding Collective Bargaining and adjourn the regular Board meeting
at the conclusion of the Executive Session.

MOTION: Pam Anderson moved to adjourn the regular meeting of the Library

Board of Trustees, reconvene in Executive Session regarding Collective Bargaining,

AND adjourn the regular Board meeting at the conclusion of the Executive Session.

Statutory citation authorizing an executive session for this topic is:

e Pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(e)(I) for discussion of strategy and instructions to
negotiators.

Seconded by Jill Fellman the motion passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees

present.

The Chair announced an eight-minute break to allow the Board and staff to clear the
room, leave the existing ZOOM meeting and then join the Executive Session.

The Chair called the Executive Session to order at 6:39pm with the following Trustees
present: Charles Jones, Jill Fellman, Stanley Harsha, Pam Anderson, Renny Fagan, and
Emelda (Bing) Walker. Also present were Steven Spirn, Donna Walker, Executive Director;
Bernadette Berger, Chief Technology & Digital Innovation Officer; Lisa Smith, Chief
People & Culture Officer; Matt Griffin, Chief Strategy & Operating Officer; Elise
Penington, Director of Communications and Engagement; and Katie O’Loughlin,
Administrative Coordinator Supervisor.

It is noted that the session was recorded and that the recording will be retained for the
required 90 days.

CALL FOR ADJOURNMENT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

MOTION: At 7:28 pm Jill Fellman moved to adjourn the Executive Session. Seconded by Stanley
Harsha the motion passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees present.

It is noted that the Library Board of Trustees met in Executive Session concerning Collective

Bargaining pursuant to 24-6-402(4) (e)(I) for discussion of strategy and instructions to negotiators. The
8of9



Trustees held those discussions, and this summary is provided as required by Colorado Statute.

Secretary

Stanley Harsha

90f9



Foundation Update



February 2025

GOOD-BYE (FOR NOW) TO

WHALE'S TALE TWO

SR

JCLF Executive Director Report
Jo Schantz, MNM, CFRE, GPC

Sadly, and after 15 months in business, JCLF has decided to
close the doors on our second used bookstore -- Whale's Tale
Two Books & Gifts -- in Belmar Shopping Center.

Although the storefront was slowly increasing revenues month
after month, and had a popular customer following in Belmar,
we were suddenly and
unfortunately told by
management to move
the operation to a less

STORE CLOSING
viﬁibliloca.tion wiihin FEBRUARY 10
the shopping center.

In addition, the . S
relocation would cost
the Foundation
thousands of dollars
in moving fees and
renovation expenses
for the new unit.

Books!

BUY ONE
GET ONE FREE
ON ALL ITEMS

BOOKS CDS DVDS
PUZZLES LPS

Our Board deliberated
quite a while and the
final verdict was to close
the Belmar store and

We're consolidating!
Visit our Colorado Mills

concentrate our efforts Whale's Tale Books & Gifts
Open noon to #E  Only 10 minutes

on the'more profltgble 6PN every day!  HECED b
Whale's Tale store in ¢ e T
Colorado Mills Mall.

whalebooks.org

The store will be closed to the public after February 9, and we
will vacate the property by February 14.

We encourage those who love our little bookstores to please
patronize the Colordo Mills Mall location near Dick's Sporting
Goods. That store is open from noon to 6 pm Sunday through
Friday and from 11 am to 6 pm on Saturdays.

COMMUNITY

CONNECTIONS

* January 17 - Lakewood Foothills Rotary Club
luncheon/meeting

* January 21 - Conifer Rotary Club presentation
re: Conifer Library

* January 23 - Lunch meeting with
representative from Comcast (re: sponsorships)

* January 28 - JCLF Finance Committee meeting
* January 29 - JCLF Board meeting
* January 30 - JCLF staff meeting

* January 31 - Staff/Volunteer Whale Sale
meeting

* February 6 - PEO lunch meeting; meeting for
Books & Brunch

* February 7 - Marketing meeting with JCPL staff

* February 10 - Monthly meeting with Donna
Walker

* February 11 - Whet Ridge Business Assn.
breakfast meeting

* February 13 - Applewood Business Assn.
lunch meeting

* February 19 - Presentation to Conifer Area
Council




FEBRUARY 2025

PAGE 2

JCLF Executive Director Report
Jo Schantz, MNM, CFRE, GPC

BOOKS ON FILM -- A
BLAST FROM THE

PRE-HISTORIC PAST!

UPDATE ON
CONIFER LIBRARY
NAMING RIGHTS

o : {

I\

< Iupessic WORIL D

Each year JCLF selects a cinematic version of a well-known book
or a literary series and hosts a premiere featuriing that film. The
event has become a regular and popular fundraiser for our
Foundation over the past four years.

This year, we have selected Jurassic World Rebirth as our
featured film. The premiere is slated for Wednesday, July 2, at
Harkins 14 Cinemas in Arvada.

Doors will open at 6 pm and the film will start at 6:40 pm, after
welcome remarks and sponsor recognition. Post-film, we will
offer a door prize drawing and an interactive audience
discussion of the film hosted by another local nonprofit, Friends
of Dinosaur Ridge.

Tickets are $50 per person and include popcorn and a beverage,
entry in the door prize drawing, private showing and seating in a
reserved theater, and participation in the discussion.

Stay tuned for more details on our website and social media ---
www.jeffclf.org and @jeffcofriends.

Iincige

Good News! To date we have been able to
secure naming rights for five of the six
available naming areas at the new Conifer
Library!

Our latest donor is Judith Atwater, a resident
of Morrison, who chose to name the Teen
Area for $3,000. Added donations have also
rolled in, ranging from $150 to more than
$400, which means those donors will have
their names placed on the permanent donor
wall at the new library.

Our thanks go to the many Conifer area
citizens and organizations that have shown
their support for the new locaton of this
well-loved branch of Jefferson County Public
Library.

We are also grateful to Conifer Radio and Mark
Spiroff for sponsoring a series of 60-second
PSAs to help us announce all available
naming opportunities.

2025 VOLUNTEER

LUNCHEON

JCLF's annual Volunteer
Appreciation Luncheon will be
held on Friday, July 25, at the

- Wheat Ridge Rec Center in

. Wheat Ridge. Volunteers are

4 invited to join us as we

W, celebrate India with its taste-
tantalizing food and
traditional dances!

More info coming soon!



Operational Updates

Executive Director Report



U WY U
FEBRUARY 2025 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

2025 Annual Plan Progress in February

Portfolio: Service Point Development & Expansion

Program: New Construction
Project: South County Library

e Finalize improvements agreement
e Finalize architect Scope of Work
e Survey community
e Decision to move forward with new operational project:
o South County Interim Services at Bradford Road
= Define services
= Implement services

Project: Express Library — South
JCPL recommends removing this project from annual plan

Project: Northwest Jeffco Library

e Continue conceptual design
e Continue formal partnership development activities
e Continue community support development

Program: Building Redesign
Project: Arvada Library

e Continue schematic design
e Finalize decision on alternative services location

Program: Tenant Finish
Project: Conifer Library

e Finalize Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)
e Continue naming opportunity solicitation
e Prepare furnishings orders

Portfolio: Building Inclusive Community
Program: Digital Accessibility

e Publish consultant scope of work for Digital Accessibility Strategy
e Select consultant for Digital Accessibility Strategy



Portfolio: Embracing Innovation & Change
Program: Artificial Intelligence Strategy

¢ Begin formal engagement with consultant
Program: Fundraising Development

o Present 2024 results and 2025 plan to Board
e Solicit bids for Long-range fundraising plan

SERVICE HIGHLIGHTS:

Valentine Events at JCPL:

From crafts to stories to parties there
is something fun for everyone.

2025 Conferences: ADVOCACY AND ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITY FOR
TRUSTEES

American Library Association 2025 Annual Conference

June 26-30, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Registration opens February 19.
CALCON 2025 Colorado Association of Libraries Annual Conference
September at Beaver Run Breckenridge, dates TBD

Urban Libraries Council Annual Leadership Forum

October 22-24, Cincinnati, Ohio


https://jeffcolibrary.bibliocommons.com/v2/events?q=Valentine&_gl=1*151cj16*_ga*ODQzMzI3ODAuMTczMjIzMTM2MQ..*_ga_G99DMMNG39*MTczOTIyMzY5Mi42Mi4wLjE3MzkyMjM2OTIuMC4wLjA.*_ga_TLER9C9ELE*MTczOTIyMzY5Mi42Mi4wLjE3MzkyMjM2OTIuMC4wLjA.

JCPL PROFESSIONAL ENGAGEMENT:

Staff from our Digital Experience team presented at the BiblioCommons BiblioWeb Quarterly
Virtual Meetup

Jenna Markl, ILL Acquisition Associate, attended the Colorado Library Consortium (CLiC) 2025
Virtual Winter Workshop

Several JCPL staff will attend Jefferson County’s 3rd Annual Jeffco Leadership Summit hosted
by County HR/Training

Lisa Smith, Chief People & Culture Officer, will attend the Mile High SHRM conference

HIGHLIGHTS OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES,
FEBRUARY 2025

Meeting with Patrick Goff, City Manager, Wheat Ridge

Meeting with City of Lakewood re: The Bend development Urban Renewal Authority

Attend CAL Legislative Committee meeting

Meeting with Renny Fagan, Library Board Trustee

Meet with Joe Kerby, Jefferson County Manager

Attend Urban Libraries Council Director/CEO meeting

Attend Jeffco Connections Board meeting and present the Member Spotlight on

JCPL

Attend Jeffco EDC Board Kick Off event

Attend meeting of the Personnel Board of the Jefferson County Elected/Appointed

Officials

» Meet with Jo Schantz, executive director, Jefferson County Library Foundation
(JCLF)

» Hold JCPL All Staff Town Hall

» Meeting with Dan Conway, Jeffco Chief Financial Officer

VVVVVYVYYY

Y V



JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
DONATION AND NAME RECOGNITION AGREEMENT

This Donation and Name Recognition Agreement (“Agreement™), dated for reference purposes
only  January 25, 2025 , 18 between __ Judy Atwater (the “Donor™), the Jefferson

County Library Foundation, Inc., a Colorado non-profit corporation (the “Library Foundation™), and
the Jefferson County Public Library (the “Library”). The Donor, Library Foundation, and Library
are collectively referred to herein as the “parties”, and hereby agree as follows:

A.

B.

RECITALS

The Donor desires to make a donation in the amount of § 3,000 (the “Donation”) in
support of the Conifer Library Teen Area (the “Project™); and

The Library Foundation and the Library are proud to recognize the Donation by providing
name recognition rights to the Donor at the Project, as more fully set forth herein,

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.

TM14-2489

The Donor pledges to make a Donation to the Library Foundation of $§ 3.000 ,
payable in one lump sum on or before Feb. 28, 2025 , to aid funding of the Project.

Donation payments are to be payable to the Jefferson County Library Foundation, Inc., and
mailed or hand delivered to the following address:

Jefferson County Library Foundation, Inc.
10790 W 50" Ave., Suite 200
Wheat Ridge CO 80033.

The Donor, Library Foundation, and Library agree that the Donation will be used for the

Project, and as an expression of appreciation the name _ Judy Atwater and Wilma Wheeler
_ (*Donor Name”) shall be displayed at the Project site.

The Donation may be invested, commingled, or merged with and become part of the general
endowment funds and investment assets of the Library Foundation. Guidelines established
by the Library Foundation Board of Trustees from time to time determine the investment,
allocation of return on investment, and distribution of endowment funds and the allocation of
income, loss, fees and expenses associated with endowment funds and securing and
administering endowment funds. The Donation and all accounting of the Donation will be
subject to these guidelines.



5.

10.

This Agreement is governed by Jefferson County Library’s Guidelines for Naming and
Name Recognition, which are incorporated herein. By entering into this Agreement, the
Donor agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained therein, including the following:

a. Signage. The sign recognizing the donation will be placed in an appropriate location,
and its design shall be consistent with the Library’s image and building design
requirements. The wording of the sign shall be mutually agreed upon by the Donor and
the Executive Director of the Library.

b. Duration. These name recognition rights will last through Feb, 28, 2030 . Donor
shall have a right of renewal at the end of the naming period to extend the naming rights
for an additional donation and an additional period to be mutually determined by the

parties.

c. Approvals.

(i) All naming acknowledgements will be approved by the Library Board of Trustees.
(ii) A re-approval process with input by the Donor shall be necessary in the following
situations:
(a) Major renovation of the space;
(b) Sale, destruction, removal or abandonment of the facility; or
(c¢) A change in the name, business focus or viability of the Donor entity.

d. Standards of Conduct. Should the Donor violate acceptable standards of integrity and
civic leadership, the Library, in its sole discretion, may elect to remove the Donor’s
name from the Library.

No items recognizing the Donation will be ordered until the full amount of the Donation has
been received by the Library Foundation.

The Donation shall be nonrefundable unless the Library Board of Trustees does not approve
the acknowledgement or the Library or Library Foundation are unable to fulfill their
obligations due to some unforeseen circumstances.

If, in the opinion of the Library Board of Trustees or the Executive Director of the Library,
all or part of the Donation cannot, in the future, be applied usefully to the purposes provided
in this Agreement, it may be used for any related purpose which, in the opinion of the
Executive Director of the Library will most nearly accomplish the wishes of the Donor as
expressed herein.

No donations will be refunded for any reason unless the Library or Library Foundation is
unable to fulfill its obligations due to unforeseen circumstances.

Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Tax Consequences. Donor, and not the Library Foundation nor the Library, is solely

TM14-2489

responsible for determining the tax consequences to Donor of the within transaction
2



TM14-2489

including, without limitation, any monetary value assigned to the naming right. No tax
receipt will be provided for the Donation.

Venue and Governing Law. Venue for any and all legal actions regarding this Agreement
shall lie in the District Court in and for the County of Jefferson, State of Colorado, and
this transaction shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.

Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provisions shall be fully severable; this
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement; and the remaining provisions of
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the
illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance from this Agreement.
Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there shall be
added automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid, and enforceable provision
as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible.

Amendments to Agreement. This written Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of
the parties. No representations, promises, terms, conditions or obligations regarding the
subject matter of this Agreement, other than those expressly set forth herein, shall be of
any force and effect. No modification, change or alteration of this Agreement shall be of
any force or effect, unless in writing, signed by both parties.

Further Acts. The parties agree to perform or cause to be performed such further acts as
may be reasonably necessary to consummate the transaction contemplated hereby.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which counterparts together shall
constitute but one and the same instrument,

No Presumption Regarding Drafter. The parties acknowledge that they have each been
advised by counsel in the drafting of this Agreement, and accordingly hereby agree
neither party shall be deemed to be the drafter of this Agreement, and therefore no
presumption for or against the drafter shall be applicable in interpreting or enforcing this
Agreement.

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this agreement this __ 23rd_

day of January 2025,

BDonor:

By: Qa.»clﬁ m

_Judy Atwater ()
(Print Donor’s Nanié) N
Date: __ January 23, 2025

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Assistant County Attorney

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED NEXT PAGE]

TM14-2489



TM14-2489

Jefferson County Library Foundation

=30 Schantz, Executjve Director
Date: How. A3 JArras
4

Jefferson County Public Library

By: Donna Walker, Executive Director
Date:




12 Budgts Batty Conphti

Helping organizations grow and evolve

FUNDRAISING PLAN:
2024 RESULTS AND
LOOKING FORWARD

Q Jefferson County
\,;'v PUBLIC LIBRARY




GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Amplify funds directly to JCPL
from philanthropic sources.

Deliver more with greater impact.



2024 RECAP

Cék~ JCPL developed scope of work; conducted competitive process; and retained
Bridget Beatty Consulting.

Established criteria for JCPL-led fundraising, and identified 2024 priority prospects.
SN Differentiated portfolio with JCLF, with JCLF to serve as fiscal sponsor when nonprofit
@ status is required for grant eligibility, in exchange for a 5% indirect rate.
< Set fundraising goal of $75,000, and presented the plan to the Board of Trustees.
Submitted first grant proposal by June 30.

Started developing internal systems of coordination and information-gathering for grant
@ proposals and reports.
W Collected community perspectives and letters of support.
Initiated outreach to philanthropic foundations.
Developed and submitted letters of interest and grant proposals.

Continued outreach to philanthropic foundations.
Continued development and submission of grant proposals.
Documented year-end results.




GRANTS SECURED

©

Colorado Gives Foundation: El Pomar Foundation:
Hard Times Workshops Capital for Conifer

Secured $25,799 grant award for Supported JCLF toward $25,000 grant Secured $25,000 grant award directly
Lighthouse Writers program of peer for Babies First Books and Books Before to JCPL for capital needs at the
support for writing skills to process Kindergarten. JCPL will approach upcoming Conifer Library.

hardship. Colorado Gives Foundation in 2025.

TOTAL RAISED UNDER NEW STRUCTURE = $75,799
FUNDS DIRECTLY TO JCPL* = $73,320
*after 5% indirect rate to JCLF for fiscal sponsorship of Colorado Gives Foundation
grants



Er=

HIGHLIGHT

Contributed to community relations
In Conifer by garnering letters of
support that were incorporated into
multiple funding proposals.



UNDER
DEVELOPMENT

INTERNAL COORDINATION

Systems of communication and
coordination for vetting grant
opportunities, gathering
information for proposals, and

meeting reporting requirements.

CONSISTENT MESSAGING

Ability to articulate unmet
areas of need, particularly
with capital projects.




ON THE HORIZON

Expanded fundraising plan to include
public funding opportunities and
legislative relations in 2025.




Denver
Foundation

Digital Equity Project

Anschutz
Foundation

Digital Equity Project

Gates
Foundation

Hard Times Workshop

Great Outdoors
CO (GOCO)

NW County Library

CO Gives
Foundation

Arvada-Family Place

Other
sources
TBD

Strategic Priorities




Thank you.

2 Bkt Bty Conpltig

Helping organizations grow and evolve

wwwlmkedincom/m/bridget-beatty



www.linkedin.com/in/bridget-beatty

Operational Updates

Strategy & Operations



Jefferson County

PUBLIC LIBRARY

=

y,'
2024 END OF YEAR REPORT

Top Row: Salida Circus program, Standley Lake Trailhead opening. Second Row: Summer Challenge
kick-off event, Evergreen Library grand re-opening, Mobile Earth and Space Observatory program.
Bottom Row: Raise A Reader Festival, Metamorphosis Moves program.



END OF YEAR REPORT

In 2024, the JCPL team achieved significant milestones and made crucial progress in realizing
the vision outlined in the 2020-2025 JCPL Strategic Plan.

The report focuses on the accomplishments and tasks undertaken by the team throughout the
year, specifically from January 1 to December 31, 2024. It details the advancements made in the
strategic projects outlined in the annual plan approved by the Board of Trustees. Beyond project
updates, the report also evaluates success measures, quantifying how the strategic priorities
align with the overarching organizational goals set by the Board of Trustees, including equity of
access, maximizing value, creating place and delivering leading-edge services.

STRATEGIC PROJECT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Program: New Construction

Project: South County Library

Program: New Construction
Project: Northwest Jeffco Library

Major Deliverables

e Engage realtor to identify suitable
sites (complete)

¢ Identify short list of sites (complete)

¢ Recommend site to Board of
Trustees (complete)

Program: Fundraising

Development

Major Deliverables

e Outsource fundraising counsel
(complete)

e 2-year fundraising plan (complete)

o Codify separate fundraising
portfolios for JCPL and JCLF
(complete)

¢ Pilot foundation relations and grants
program (complete)

¢ Fundraising evaluation (in progress)

Other Completed Accomplishments

o Initiated work to continue with
consultant in 2025

o ldentified multiple future projects
related to this program

Major Deliverables

e Submit rezoning application (complete)

e Acquire site (complete)

e Select architect (complete)

o Community Engagement Report
(complete)

¢ Program of Service Report (complete)

e Library Design Initiated (not started)

Program: Building Redesign

Project: Evergreen Library

Major Deliverables

e Complete Construction (complete)
e Move in (complete)

¢ Reopen to Public (complete)




Major Deliverables

Program: Building Redesign

Project: Arvada Library

Facilitated Community Engagement
(Complete)

Program of Service (Complete)
Design Development (in progress)
Identify alternative services location
(in progress)

Major Deliverables

Program: Building Opportunities

Project: Conifer Library

Other Completed Accomplishments

Acquire or lease location (complete)
Program of Service (complete)
Design Development (complete)

Engaged General Contractor
Schematic Design
Awarded Grant towards capital expenses

Program: Expand Offsite Services

Project: South County-
Express Library

Major Deliverables

e Secure funding for project (complete)
¢ Identify Site location (in progress)

¢ Tenant Finish (not started)

Program: Accelerate our

Building Program
Project: Design Standard

Major Deliverables

¢ Finalize Design Standard (complete)

o Revise Program of Service (complete)

¢ Implement Design Standards across
all JCPL locations (complete)

e Operationalize Design Standard
(complete)

Other Completed Accomplishments

o Shelving template

o Applied Design Standard to Evergreen
Library Redesign




Program: Create a Radically
Welcoming JCPL - Public

Project: New Collection
Development Policy

Major Deliverables

e Research Report — Library Policy
Comparative Study (complete)

¢ Revise Collection Development Policy
(in progress)

e Revise Material Reconsideration
Request (in progress)

Program: Digital Accessibility

(NEW)

Major Deliverables

e Project Charter (completed)

¢ Training and awareness (completed)

o Digital accessibility remediation plan
(draft completed)

o Staff and patron digital accessibility
guidelines (in progress)

e Governance and guidance (in
progress)

Other Completed Accomplishments

o Digital accessibility introductory training
for staff

o Created and published required quarterly
reports

o Created and implemented required patron
and staff inquiry process

o Created and published JCPL Digital
Accessibility Statement and updated
web page

Program: Advance Digital
Equity & Inclusion

Project: Digital Literacy
Collaboration (ARPA)

Major Deliverables

1. Complete phases 1-3

e Order equipment (complete)

¢ Conduct school and community
training (complete)

¢ Produce reporting (complete)

e Evaluation plan (complete)

e Conduct and present evaluation
(complete)

2. Final accounting and reporting
requirement (in progress)

Other Completed Accomplishments

o Created new community partnerships

o 385 new JCPL library card holders

o Project received awards and national
recognition

o 402 internet-enabled laptops distributed

Program: Expand Offsite Services

Project: 4th Hold Pickup Location

Major Deliverables
e Complete installation of offsite holds
lockers (complete)




Program: Create a Radically
Welcoming JCPL - Staff

Project: Talent Pipeline
Development

Major Deliverables

e DEI training to JCPL leadership teams
(complete)

e Deliver JCPL Leadership Academy
(complete)

e Create a Leadership Book Club
(complete)

e Leadership Lunch and Learn
(complete)

e Conduct a talent pipeline assessment
with the Directors Team (complete)

Program: Artificial Intelligence
Strategy

Project: Artificial Intelligence
Policy

Major Deliverables

o Develop Al staff and patron policies
and guidelines (in progress)

o Feasibility study for implementing
Al solutions (in progress)

e Al pilot program (in progress)

Other Completed Accomplishments

o Promoted Al education and training
for staff

o Al visioning session with Executive
Team

o Joined Government Al Coalition

Program: Advance Community

Literacy
Project: Imagination Library

Major Deliverables

o Determine the fiscal agent (complete)

¢ Identify zip codes and supportive
organizations (complete)

e Strategy for long-term organizations
(complete)

e Recommend JCPL involvement and
resources (complete)

¢ Initiate the pilot program (complete)

Other Completed Accomplishments
o First set of books mailed

Program: Create a Radically
Welcoming JCPL - Staff

Project: All Staff Compensation
Strategy

Major Deliverables

e Compensation philosophy and
policy for JCPL (complete)

e Complete the compensation
analysis (in progress)

e Apply findings to the 2025 salary
budget (complete)

Other Completed Accomplishments
o Phase 1 study for non-union jobs
complete




This report highlights the many strategic project accomplishments achieved in 2024. However, the
achievements above do not tell the whole story. Day in and day out, JCPL provides patrons with
services through an engaging website, physical and digital collection, appealing programs for all
ages, 11 library locations, Library To You services and outreach services to kids, families, teens,

adults and diverse populations.

Below are just a few of the other 2024 accomplishments JCPL’s caring and capable staff are
particularly proud of. These efforts, and many more, enhanced the lives of Jefferson County
residents by providing them with even more opportunities to connect, discover and create.

v
0
0
2
=
i
<
m
3
\'4
S
Y

=

~ BARGAINING ﬁ

o
SUMMER ZZ2
CHALLENGE 10 0O
R
Y

OHl1lN

N3H3dNOD 44VI1S

Voo
2 e [HERARY
03>

cmmolLEASE
EVERGREEN LIBRARY X

STANDLEY LAKE
TRAILHEA
EWOOD LIBRAR

GRAND REOPENING 33

DIGITAL
LITERACY

PRIDE PROGRAMMING

SOUTH COUNTY
LIBRARY PURCHASE
AND SALE AGREEMENT

RAISE A READER

DOOR IMPROVEMENTS

O KALEIDOSCOPE H:2ichine

Z AT ARVADA CENTER TRAINING
Mgz e A
— wn

2 V£ O~ 05 JEFFCO &
Cz230n O & X0 commuNiTy 2
C LS Lo [™ Z [T] ENGAGEMENT 4
QO wZ A Sm2El5E 852
zoSmUp» L) cuiag
JoaaDWNZzZEs|aRsa >
T 59 REROOFING 98 | 26 1 &
0 @& PROJECTS 0¢|$5 8o
% IMAGINATION LIBRARY | 23 O m

55 >

A KICK-OFF | 545
NW JEFFCO E O

O DIGITAL LIBRARY 6<%
G LIBRARY CARD LAND CLOSING Lﬂua C
TEEN VOLUNTEER GROWTH 0

LIBRARY OPERATIONAL MEASURES

Each year, JCPL reviews the alignment of our strategic priorities and initiatives with the overarching
goals established by the Board of Trustees. We also assess the success metrics for the day-to-day
resources and services we provide the community. Our year-end evaluation of success metrics
provides insight into how our operational services and resources advance JCPL’s mission, vision
and values, as well as their impact on the Jefferson County community. This review contrasts our
2024 Library operations with those of the two prior years.

2024 was a successful year for JCPL. Strong growth in several of our success measures continued
recent trends of steady improvement and stabilizing operations following the COVID-19 pandemic.



2024 SUCCESS MEASURES

In 2024, patron activity and library use continued to approach and, in some cases, exceed pre-
pandemic levels.

e Total collection use passes 10 million
In 2024, total collection use exceeded 10 million circulations and use of materials across all
formats, marking a historic milestone for the Library. Total collection use includes physical
and digital materials being checked out and renewed, as well as information accessed
through our databases. The growth is due to a 10% increase in circulation of e-materials
compared to 2023 and a 5.8% increase in the use of databases, continuing a trend of
growing demand for digital materials and resources. The use of physical materials has been
relatively stable since 2022. Physical materials are still the Library’s largest collection,
representing a large portion of total collection use.

o Programming continues strong growth with record-setting event
JCPL had over 220,000 program attendees in 2024, a 10% increase in program attendance
compared to 2023, further building on the strong growth during that year. In the month of
April, we partnered with Jefferson County Public Schools to offer “An Evening with
Jacqueline Woodson,” which became JCPL’s most-attended event on record, with over
20,000 attendees including both in-person and live online audiences.

¢ Market penetration, driven by more household activity
Market penetration rose by 4.3%. This rise is significant in the context that market
penetration has been stable since JCPL established the current definition in 2022 and driven
by a 4.5% rise in the number of active households. The number of active households
increased through consistent outreach, marketing and signups. In addition, the library’s Net
Promotor Score reached 85 in 2024 which is a 3.7% growth from 2023. These increases tell
us that users are experiencing higher satisfaction with the resources and services we
provide the community.

e \Visits to the library continue to rise
Visits rose 6% in 2024 compared to 2023. This use of physical library locations continues a
pattern of steady growth in visits we have seen since re-opening our library locations after
COVID-19 closures. Our community has shared its interest in the Library as a ‘third place’
and the increase in visits demonstrates that JCPL is meeting that need.

ibrary Benchmark Measures'

% change

2022 2023 2024 2023 to 2024

Total collection use 9,593,816 9,977,109 10,146,319 1.7%
Circulation (physical materials) 6,624,616 6,585,874 6,467,737 -1.8%
Circulation (e-materials) 1,887,986 2,119,889 2,334,069 10.1%
Database use 1,081,214 1,271,346 1,344,513 5.8%
Program attendance 143,155 203,471 223,968 10.1%
Visits 1,725,351 1,840,473 1,951,596 6.0%
Active households 91,068 91,233 95,159 4.5%
Active cardholders 132,171 139,689 136,032 -2.6%
Ma